
MINUTES 
 

CRESSKILL PLANNING BOARD 
 

DECEMBER 14, 2010 
 
 
Mr. Vaccaro called the meeting to order at 7:40 PM and announced the requirements of the Open Public 
Meetings Act had been fulfilled.   
 
Members present at roll call: Mayor Romeo, Councilwoman Tsigounis, Mr. Vaccaro, Ms. 

Bauer, Mr. Morgan, Mr. Mozur, Mr. Vieni, Mr. Laurita and Mrs. 
Schultz.  Also present were Mr. Paul Azzolina, Borough Engineer 
and Mr. Steven Schuster, Board Attorney. 

 
**** 

 
Mr. Laurita made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 23, 2010, meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Morgan.  All present were in favor of the motion.  Motion approved. 
 

**** 
 

Correspondence 
 
Voucher from Mr. Steven Schuster for services rendered relative to the Planning Board meeting for the 
month of September 2010 in the amount of $1,493.35.  Mr. Vieni made a motion to approve, seconded by 
Mr. Laurita.  All present were in favor.  Motion approved. 
 
Copy of notice regarding the Special Meeting on Tuesday, December 14, 2010, at 7:30 PM to adopt and 
incorporate revisions to and periodic re-examination of the Cresskill Master Plan.  Copies are available for 
inspection at the Borough Clerk’s office on regular business days.  This meeting was advertised as a 
public hearing and was published at least 10 days in advance.  File.   
 
Letter of Introduction from Mr. Edward M. Rossi, Construction Official, dated December 8, 2010, sending 
Jung Hyun Kim to this Board for approval to open her tutoring business at 135 County Road.  She will be 
teaching English to children.  Ms. Kim was present.  Ms. Kim noted that it is a franchise tutoring service to 
teach and help children behind in school and children that want to advance.  They teach English as a 
second language and math.  JEI is the Korean franchise company.  She will have 760 square feet of 
space.  There will be one teacher for each subject.  There will be three or four students at any one time.  
Classes will be held after school.  They have a workbook that the franchise provides that is for 
Kindergarten through 9th grade.  Parents can stay if they wish.  The classes are 50 minutes.  The 
franchise is headquartered in Los Angeles with an office in Englewood Cliffs.  Mr. Laurita made a motion 
to approve, seconded by Mrs. Schultz.  All present were in favor.  Motion approved.  Letter sent to Ms. 
Kim notifying her of the Board’s approval. 
 
Letter of Introduction from Mr. Edward M. Rossi, Construction Official, dated December 8, 2010, sending 
Mr. Daniel Tuzzio to this Board for approval.  He is seeking approval to open his accounting business at 
16 E. Madison Avenue.  He would like to be able to sleep there during the busy season.  The building is 
already set up to accommodate that, as it is a converted home.  Mr. Tuzzio was present.  He stated that 
he would like it to be a place of residence during the tax season.  Mayor Romeo noted that it still has a 
kitchen in it and a bedroom upstairs.  It has been used both as a home and as a business.  Mr. Vieni 
made a motion to approve, seconded by Mr. Laurita.  All present were in favor.  Motion approved.  Letter 
sent to Mr. Tuzzio stating the Board’s approval. 
 



Cresskill Planning Board Minutes, December 14, 2010 

Letter of Introduction from Mr. Edward M. Rossi, Construction Official, sending Mr. Lucibello to this Board 
for approval.  He would like to construct a new single family dwelling at 16 Emerson Street.  The house 
currently standing on the property needs to be demolished.  It had been condemned due to the storm in 
March of this year.  No plans were received.  Mr. Lucibello was not present.  Mr. Vaccaro noted that the 
home is being demolished on Friday.  File. 
 
Letter of Introduction from Mr. Edward M. Rossi, Construction Official, sending Mr. Keith Kaminskas, a 
representative for Dunkin’ Donuts, to this Board for approval of the signage for the drive-thru window 
menu board, directional signs, awning (already in place) and a pylon sign at 22-32 Piermont Road.  Mr. 
Kaminskas stated that the pylon sign would be on the corner of Piermont and Broadway and the 
indications would be on Broadway where you pull in to give some directional to tell people where to go.  
The pylon would be within the code.  Mr. Kaminskas pointed out where the directional signs would be.  
There are two directional signs.  He noted that most towns don’t consider a menu board a sign.  The 
directional signs are two feet by one foot.  Mayor Romeo didn’t think they needed so many directional 
signs.  Mr. Kaminskas asked about just one sign showing how to get to the Dunkin’ Donuts drive-thru.  
That is the only entrance.  Mayor Romeo asked about the square footage of all the signs.   
 
Councilwoman Tsigounis questioned the position of the directional sign so when you enter the site you 
know which way to go to get to the drive-thru.  Mr. Azzolina agreed on the placement that Councilwoman 
Tsigounis suggested since there is only once entrance into the site.  Mayor Romeo asked about the laws 
on pylon signs.  Mr. Schuster noted that we talked about the 7-Eleven and the fact that that was pre-
existing.  In the code it says under prohibitive signs:  Pylon signs more than 25 feet in height, closer than 
18” to any property line a pylon sign on any other use other than a gasoline station.  Mr. Kaminskas noted 
that when they met with the owner at the first meeting, this sign was approved, the pylon.  The owner had 
an approval.  That is the only reason why they went forward with the application, because Dunkin’ Donuts 
corporate would never allow a store to open without one.  Mr. Schuster asked what application that 
approval was on.  He was not sure.  Mr. Schuster read again what it said about prohibitive signs:  Pylon 
or pole signs more than 25 feet in height, and closer than 18” to any property line on any other use other 
than a gas station.  Basically, if it is less than 25 feet for a gas station you can have it.  And you are not 
allowed to have a pylon sign for anything else other than a gas station.  We talked about the 7-Eleven 
and the whole up-shot of that one is because that sign, or the original one that was on the site, was there 
from when that was a gas station in the 1940s, which was a pre-existing situation.  In that situation also, 
since it was an existing use, we allowed it to be moved.   
 
Mayor Romeo questioned the interpretation of the prohibitive signs code.  Mr. Schuster read it again.  Mr. 
Vieni asked about converting it to a monument sign.  Mr. Hakim remembers that CVS wanted a pylon 
sign and we said no.  Monuments add a lot of cost, but they are more attractive.  Mr. Kaminskas was 
under the impression from the owner and the landlord that this had already been approved.  They stated 
that they got a letter from Susan in the Building Department that came from the Board that they submitted 
to Dunkin’ from the first time they met and in the letter it said signs to be approved and discussed at a 
later date.   
 
Mr. Schuster again read the code regarding prohibitive signs.  Mr. Hakim interprets it the same way Mr. 
Schuster does.  Mr. Schuster noted that the sign or the location isn’t the issue.  The issue is whether it is 
permitted at all.  Mr. Azzolina agrees and would make it the monument sign and be done with it.  Mr. 
Vaccaro noted that if they would do a monument sign they would approve.  Mr. Kaminskas will redo the 
drawings.  Mayor Romeo asked how much square footage of sign he could have so he can accurately 
redo the plans for the signs.  Mr. Schuster noted that the code says the aggregate area in square feet of 
all signs on any wall shall be no greater than one-half the length in feet of such wall.  The way we have 
interpreted that in the past is whatever the length of the wall is, say 50 feet, he is entitled to 25 square 
feet.  Mr. Kaminskas noted that when he looked at the zoning code, it said 18 square with no letters 
bigger than six inches.  They are proposing 18 square feet, three feet by six feet, for the monument.   
 
Mayor Romeo asked about the menu board.  Mr. Schuster noted that there is nothing in the code 
regarding menu boards.  Councilwoman Tsigounis doesn’t see the need for a pylon sign in Cresskill.  She 
is concerned about the monument sign as well and the other tenants.  Mr. Kaminskas noted that that had 

Page 2 



Cresskill Planning Board Minutes, December 14, 2010 

come up in the last meeting.  That is when the landlord said that it would be for Dunkin’ exclusively.  He is 
not going to allow any more on the property.  He said the landlord had gotten the approval and without 
that approval he wouldn’t have been able to get approval from Dunkin’ for this location.  Mr. Vieni doesn’t 
feel that the menu board should be considered a sign.  There was some discussion about where to put 
the directional sign.  They agreed to do a monument sign and it will fall within the code.  The menu board 
will not be considered a sign.   
 
Mayor Romeo reiterated that the menu board will not be considered a sign, he pointed out where the 
directional sign will be located after you enter the site, and there will be a monument sign that conforms to 
the code.  They will come back with a rendering that doesn’t require any variances for the signage.  
Everybody was in agreement with this arrangement.  Mr. Morgan was concerned with congestion of 
traffic.  He was shown that there is plenty of stacking that congestion wouldn’t be a problem.  Mr. Vieni 
made a motion to approve as stated by Mayor Romeo, seconded by Mr. Mozur.  All present were in favor.  
Motion approved. They will take a picture of the CVS sign to make the monument sign coincide with that 
one.  Mr. Schuster noted that this will be subject to the monument sign being within the code.  Letter sent 
to Mr. Rossi stating the Board’s decision on the signs. 
 

**** 
 

Subdivision Committee 
 
Councilwoman Tsigounis had nothing new to report. 
 

**** 
 

Report from the Borough Engineer’s Office 
 
Mr. Azzolina noted that he conducted a site plan review on the Chang application, #1405, 50 Piermont 
Road.  He distributed his report of his findings, stating that it was incomplete.  He noted that they did get 
an attorney involved and he spoke with them and they indicated they were having some lease problems 
with the landlord and that is one of the pieces of information that he asked for was the consent of the 
property owner.  Apparently they are having problems.  He received a letter that stated:  “This letter will 
confirm our recent telephone conference concerning the site plan application for the above matter (50 
Piermont Road).  I have conferred with my client and it appears that the landlord and tenant cannot bridge 
differences on lease terms. Therefore, the site plan application can be considered withdrawn at this time.”   
 

**** 
 

Old Business 
 
None. 
 

**** 
 

New Business 
 
None. 
 

**** 
 

Public Hearing – Cresskill Master Plan  
 
Mr. Michael Hakim was present to present the Cresskill Master Plan.  Mr. Hakim noted that this is the 
Master Plan revision and re-examination report.  He stated that this was properly advertised as a public 
hearing for the Master Plan re-examination report and revision.  This latest document has been 
advertised in all surrounding towns and the Bergen County Planning Board has been notified of this 

Page 3 



Cresskill Planning Board Minutes, December 14, 2010 

hearing and been invited to come and make comments.  It has been advertised for the residents of 
Cresskill and there have been copies sitting in the Borough Clerk’s office for inspection.  This is the 
hearing where the Board and the public has the opportunity to comment on the document and he would 
ask at the end of that he get a motion to adopt the Master Plan.  Then the Board would memorialize the 
resolution in a couple weeks and send a copy to the County and we will be done for another six years, 
unless in the interim the Board decides to revise something.   
 
Mr. Hakim noted that he incorporated the comments that were made at the last meeting.  There was a 
little bit of additional information worked in from the Public Works, nothing of significance.  The flood plain 
discussion was expanded with regard to the school to identify the DPW as an emergency exit for students 
in the case of flooding.  He added encouraging bicycles and introducing bicycle racks into the downtown 
and at other public facilities in the community and potentially even signing routes through the community 
as an objective.  We made a recommendation to look at more efficient lighting, perhaps LED, which is the 
state-of-the-art lighting today.  Mayor Romeo noted that they got a grant for $80,000 and all the lights 
have been replaced in all the public buildings and three new furnaces have been put in.  Another change 
is previously the school discussion only had the projections from the facility Master Plan and the school 
superintendent has given him actual numbers, so he added one chart so they have actual numbers to 
compare what the projections were.  There is one mention of the Tenakill Brook and how that has 
become problematic with flooding, but that is clearly not a municipal issue, it is a regional issue that would 
involve the State, the region, as well as the water company.  A little more discussion about the community 
center.  Everything else is what was already reviewed. 
 
Ms. Bauer asked about the ERI.  Mr. Hakim noted that that has been a recommendation for several 
Master Plans now that you might want to consider the preparation of an environmental resource inventory 
for the municipality.  It is still in there.  Mayor Romeo asked what that would be.  Mr. Hakim explained that 
it is an inventory of the natural resources in the community.  It maps out where the flood plains are, where 
the wetlands are, where steep slopes are and so forth.  It becomes an educational tool for residents of the 
community.  It becomes a working tool for the Environmental Commission.  It becomes an information 
document.  What he has learned over the years is that most people who live in our densely developed 
suburbs don’t have a real appreciation for the extent of the natural resources that you live around and 
among.  People look at rivers as a barrier to cross on the way to work, they don’t look at them as a 
resource.  It emphasizes that.  It has some value.  What it does for the Environmental Commission is they 
prepare it and if they do so, one of the products is a display board that shows all the natural resources 
and that gets mounted in the Council chambers so that if you are hearing a land use application you have 
that to refer to.  It is a helpful tool for both the Board of Adjustment and the Planning Board.  For the 
Environmental Commission, if they submit that to the community, it then brings them into the review loop 
too.  They can submit a report commenting on development applications if it has environmental impacts. 
 
Councilwoman Tsigounis asked about other towns that have this.  Mr. Hakim noted that just about every 
town has this.  Cresskill is one of the few that doesn’t have one.  Mr. Hakim noted that a natural resource 
is all the water bodies.  You have C1 waterways in this community.  The Tenakill Brook, the Demarest 
and Cresskill brooks.  That is the highest anti-degradation category the DEP has.  Ms. Bauer also added 
all the parks.  The natural lands, the Eisenhower Park and a few other wooded properties.  These are 
resources that are rapidly disappearing and it helps to promote their preservation.  There are a lot of 
benefits to it.  The recommendation in the Master Plan says you should consider preparing an 
Environmental Resource Inventory.  It doesn’t say you have to do it.  Ms. Bauer noted that you would 
map all the parks and waterways and natural resources in great detail.  If the Environmental Commission 
really wants to pursue it, they can go to ANJEC and apply for a grant and they will fund most of the cost 
of preparing the document and they could head the program to develop this.  It goes into libraries, it goes 
into schools and it helps children and adults appreciate the natural resources and their value to the 
community.  The Environmental Commission is an advisory board to the Planning Board.  The Planning 
Board uses them as a resource, they can accept or reject their recommendations.  Mayor Romeo advised 
Ms. Bauer to apply for the grant.  Mr. Hakim noted that his office prepares them.  You can go onto Fair 
Lawn’s website and see what one looks like.   
 

Page 4 



Cresskill Planning Board Minutes, December 14, 2010 

Page 5 

Mr. Hakim noted that this gives you a resource that becomes like a red flag document so if somebody 
comes and says they want to develop a wooded lot, you can look at that document and it says it has a 
few natural resources on that property, and it puts the onus on the applicant to demonstrate how he is 
going to protect them.   
 
Mr. Vaccaro opened the meeting to the public.  Ms. Jean Quinn, 34 Glenview Terrace, wished to be 
heard.  Ms. Quinn asked about shared services.  Mr. Hakim noted that there is a recommendation in the 
Master Plan that that continue to be pursued.  Ms. Quinn asked if there was anything about cleaning up 
the Tenakill.  Mr. Hakim noted that there is something about the fact that the Environmental Commission 
does sponsor clean-ups at times and that there are other opportunities to encourage groups like the 
scouts and the like to get involved with clean ups.  Ms. Bauer noted that the problem with using kids to 
clean up the Tenakill is the insurance liability.  You are not really allowed to let them near the water.  Mr. 
Hakim noted that there is a general note about clean ups in the parks.  Ms. Quinn asked about what was 
brought up as far as cleaning up the brook like Demarest had done and how that hadn’t worked very well 
because the water runs north and the clean up didn’t last long.  Mr. Hakim noted that we did talk about 
that and it is a regional issue, not a Cresskill issue, or even a Demarest or Tenafly or Englewood or 
Closter issue.  It also becomes a water company issue, too.  Ms. Quinn asked if there was anything in the 
Master Plan to address that if we want to look at it on a regional level.  Mr. Hakim noted that it is.   
 
Mr. Laurita made a motion to close the meeting to the public.  Ms. Schultz seconded the motion.  All 
present were in favor.  Motion approved.   
 
Mr. Schuster noted that we are going to make a motion to adopt the periodic re-examination of the Master 
Plan with amendments as discussed in the meeting.  The resolution will be adopted at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Mozur made a motion to approve the Cresskill Master Plan, seconded by Mr. Morgan.  On Roll:  
Mayor Romeo, Councilwoman Tsigounis, Mr. Vaccaro, Ms. Bauer, Mr. Morgan, Mr. Mozur, Mr. Vieni and 
Mr. Laurita all voted yes.  Motion approved.   

 
**** 

 
Other Business 

 
None. 
 

**** 
 
Mr. Vaccaro opened the meeting to the public.  No public wished to be heard.   
 

**** 
 
Motion was made by Mr. Morgan to adjourn the meeting at 8:44 PM, seconded by Mrs. Schultz.  All 
present were in favor.  Motion approved. 

 
**** 

 
The next four regular Planning Board meetings are scheduled for December 28, 2010, January 11, 
January 25, and February 8, 2011 at 7:30 PM in the Borough Hall.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Carolyn M. Petillo 
Recording Secretary 


	Correspondence
	Subdivision Committee
	Report from the Borough Engineer’s Office
	Old Business
	New Business


